1951

Maria B. Lepasiotes v. Sophronia Woodland Dinsdale, Chester F. Dinsdale and Darrell Dinsdale : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The facts in this case appear to involve two elements as follows:

1. A dispute as to the boundary line between the real property that is Tract #1, as described in the plaintiff's complaint, and which is vested in the defendant, Sophronia Woodland Dingdale, and the property described in paragraph Two of the plaintiff's complaint and which title is vested in the plaintiff.

2. A question of damages to trees planted in a line running North and South in the vicinity in question, the exact location of the same being more particularly delineated on defendants and appellants

"Exhibit #2" on file herein.

Also damages to a ramshackle fence and irrigation ditch, the locations of which are set forth in detail on the defendants and appellants said "Exhibit #2".

Each of the parties hereto, as appears from plaintiff and respondent's "Exhibit A" and defendants and appellants "Exhibit #3 and #4" are vested with title to respective parcels of real property hereinabove referred - that is the plaintiff and the respondent is vested with the title to parcel of land which it is admitted that she owns and defendant and respondent, Sophronia Woodland Dinsdale, is vested with title to the property which is identified as Tract #1 in the proceedings in said matter.

It appears from the evidence that defendant and appellant, Sophronia Woodland Dinsdale's husband Chester F. Dinsdale, who is also a party to this action, obtained title to said Tract #1 in question on or about December 31st, 1918, and that thereafter up to on or about August 17th, 1931, enjoyed quiet and peaceable possession of the entire tract when he conveyed title to defendant and respondent, Sophronia Woodland Dinsdale, by warranty deed and for a valuable consid-

eration with the exception of the brick home located on the premises of both defendant and respondent, Sophronia Woodland Dinsdale, and that further, their predecessors in interest also enjoyed like peaceable use and possession of said premises. (See defendant's "Exhibit #3") Further, for the location of the house in question, see defendant's "Exhibit #2".

The facts further seem to be uncontradicted that all parties to this action have paid the taxes, both state and county taxes, on the respective parcels of land herein involved, and which have been particularly referred to hereinabove, and which taxes have been levied against said parcels in question by the proper taxing authority.

It further appears to be the fact that plaintiff and respondent acquired title to the property with which it is admitted, as described in the deed by which she obtained title on or about December 8th, 1924, plaintiff's "Exhibit #A".

The facts further seem to be as shown by the evidence that the defendants and appellants, Chester F. Dinsdale and Sophronia Woodland Dinsdale, as well as their predecessors in interest at all times up to

about 1931, enjoyed quiet and peaceable possession of the entire parcel described hereinabove without claim of right being asserted by the plaintiff and respondent.

Further, it appears from the evidence and in particular the testimony of William Lepasiotes, one of the witnesses for the plaintiff and respondent, that the boundary fence line between the two parcels in question was on the line as called for in the respective deeds by which the respective parties hereto, and their predecessors in interest, obtained title to the respective parcels in question, and the plaintiff and respondent admits that up to 1933 the fence line in question and the location of which is set out on defendant and appellant's "Exhibit #3" was never in existence.

The facts further appear to be that the plaintiff's and respondent's, and her predecessors in interest, never used or claimed any part of parcel of defendant and appellant's property herein concerned until about 1931, with the exception of the exact spot of land upon which the house stood.

Sometime about 1932 or 1933 it is the fact that

ent, and Chester F. Dinsdale, one of the defendants and appellants and the husband of defendant and appellant, Sophronia Woodland Dinsdale, and at a time when neither of them were vested with title to either of the parcels in question, and hereinabove referred to, engaged in personal differences which developed to such an extent that court action resulted in both a criminal and civil nature. Wm. Lepasiotes being the complaining party in each instance. The disposition of the criminal action does not seem to be of moment in this matter. However, the civil action was disposed of by the Honorable Judge Pratt requiring Mr. Wm. Lepasiotes and Mr. Dinsdale herein to erect a "Peace Fence" which is the fence heretofore referred and which it is contended by the plaintiff and respondent is the boundary line between the parcels in question. It is admitted a "make shift fence" of little consequence was constructed, but it is further definitely claimed and is uncontradicted that defendant and respondent, Sophronia Woodland Dinsdale, the owner of the Tract #1 hereinabove particularly referred, never was a party to said action - did not participate in the construction of said "peace fence" and did not

authorize or condone the construction of the same. And said Chester F. Dinsdale, while he had title to said parcel designated in plaintiff's complaint as Tract #1, and the said Sophronia Woodland Dinsdale have always claimed title and the right to the entire tract #1, and so used the same up to about 1931 or thereafter without adverse claim or interference by any one.

Relative to the claim of the plaintiff for damages, defendants and respondents admit that defendant and respondent Darrell Dinsdale individually and of his sole volition, bored holes in approximately four of the trees along the row of trees in question during the spring of 1949, and poured a salt solution in said holes. However, the record is silent of the fact that the trees in question were damaged.

Further, the facts seem to show that the irrigation ditch used by the plaintiff and respondent for irrigation purposes and which runs northerly immediately west of the row of trees in question, was used by them during the irrigation seasons of 1949 and 1950 without any difficulty or inconvenience.

turbance seems to be that defendants and respondents Chester F. Dinadale and Darrel Dinadale, during the early part of 1949, reset or strengthened up a post without otherwise disturbing the rest of the posts or wire along the fence.

The Court at the conclusion of the trial, disregarding the evidence in said matter and the deeds of conveyance by which the plaintiff and respondent and Sophronia Woodland Dinadale, one of the defendants and appellants, and all of their predecessors in interest, obtained title to said parcels of property in question, found the boundary line between the two parcels of property to be on the line of the "Peace Fence" herein referred to and so ordered a judgment to be entered accordingly.

It seems important at this time to set forth that this action was instituted on June 23, 1949 - and came on for trial on October 17, 1950, and that on October 13, 1950, the counsel for defendants and appellants and who substituted in place and instead of Arthur Wealley, Esq., their former attorney, caused to be filed an affidavit executed by the said Chester F.

who tried said matter, be disqualified to sit for the reasons set forth therein. See the entire transcript on appeal in plaintiff's "Exhibit #A", and defendants' "Exhibits 2, 3, 4 and 5".

ARGUMENT

POINT I

"THE COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO REFER THE QUESTION OF HIS QUALIFICATION TO HEAR SAID MATTER TO ANOTHER JUDGE FOR DETERMINATION OF SAID QUESTION."

At the time this matter came on for hearing on the merits on October 17th, 1950, the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure had been adopted in this state and were in full force and effect, and according to said rules the Trial Judge when an affidavit (see Tr.1-10) has been filed setting forth that said judge is biased or prejudiced against said parties, shall refer said question to another judge for his determination and such requirement is necessary.

This requirement is expressly set forth in Rule 63 B, of the Utah Rules of Court Procedure.

POINT II

"THAT THE TRIAL JUDGE IN THIS MATTER WAS BIASED AND PREJUDICED AGAINST THE DEFENDANTS AND APPELLANTS

AND THEIR COUNSEL WHO TRIED SAID MATTER AND FOR THAT
REASON THEY WERE PREVENTED FROM HAVING A FAIR TRIAL
ON THE MERITS OF SAID CASE*.

In support of Point II, the argument the defendants and appellants call this Honorable Court's attention to the entire trial proceedings as set forth in the transcript (Ex. 1-315). The evidence as cited clearly shows the bias and prejudice of the Court.

POINT III

"THAT THE COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO GRANT DEFENDANTS' MOTION to dismiss said action at the close OF PLAINTIFF'S PRESENTATION OF EVIDENCE".

That at the conclusion of the plaintiff's case, defendants made a motion for a dismissal of said action upon the grounds and reasons set forth in said motion (Tr. 165-166).

That defendants and appellants contend upon the pleadings and evidence introduced by plaintiff up to that time - the cases are legion that the Court erred in this regard.

POINT IV

"THAT THE COURT ERRED IN ESTABLISHING THE BOUND.

ANY LINK BETWEEN THE PLAINTIFF AND RESPONDENT'S AND

PROPERTIES AS SET FORTH IN THE DECREE IN SAID MATTER".

In view of the pleadings, the evidence and the facts in this matter (see entire record on appeal) the cases are legion in this jurisdiction that plaintiff and respondent is not entitled to the establishment of the boundary line as found by the court, and that it should be established according to the description in their respective deeds. Tripp vs. Bagley - Utah - 276 Pac 912; Annotation 69 A L R 1430 Brown vs. Milliner Utah - 232 - Pac 28 202.

POINT V:

"THE COURT ERRED IN GRANTING A MONEY JUDGMENT AGAINST THE DEFENDANTS AND APPELLANTS AND IN PARTICULAR DEFENDANT AND APPELLANT SOPHERONIA WOODLAND DINSDALE FOR \$275.00 AND COSTS".

That it is concluded by the defendants and appellants that the money judgment awarded plaintiff and respondent against the defendants and appellants and in particular Sophronia Woodland Dinsdale is not supported by law or the facts in said matter. (See entire transcript on appeal).

POINT VI

"THAT THE COURT ERRED IN THE ADMISSION OF TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE PRODUCED AT THE TRIAL BY THE PLAINTIFF AND RESPONDENT AND THE DEFENDANTS AND APPELLANTS WHICH WAS DULY OBJECTED TO BY THE DEFENDANTS AND APPELLANTS".

That the defendants and appellants submitted to this Court that the trial court improperly admitted testimony and evidence introduced and offered by the plaintiff and respondent in said matter. (See entire transcript on appeal).

THEREFORE, in view of the foregoing facts, evidence, authorities and pleadings in said matter, it is respectfully submitted that the judgment of the trial court in said matter be reversed, and that the defendants and appellants be granted such other and further relief as may be meet and just in the premises.

The foregoing is respectfully submitted.

GEORGE M. MASON

Attorney for Defendants and Appellants.

Dated at Brigham City, Utah,
this 10th day of January, A.D. 1952.