1952

Maria B. Lepasiotes v. Sophronia Woodland Dinsdale, Chester F. Dinsdale and Darrell Dinsdale : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

- Point No. 1: "The Dinsdale deed does not call for any land west of the fence line established by the Court."

The facts developed in this cause by

the defendants, through the witness, Jack H. Craven, included the following undisputed statements:

That the official field notes of the original survey of that line show the Southwest corner of the Southwest Quarter of Section 19, Township 6 North, Range 1 West, to lie due south of the Northwest corner of that Quarter section. That surveying the lands described in the deeds, by lines running exactly as called for therein, would result in no overlap of the two areas, but rather a gap between them, and would leave the boundary fence described in the decree entirely upon the plaintiff's land,

It is true that, after both monuments were lost, relocation of the same

by Mr. Craven, as to the Northwest corner, and ²/₁ another former county surveyor, as to the Southwest Quarter corner, resulted in fixing that line at an angle west of south, so that, if the line so fixed—"as well as could be done under the conditions", as Mr. Craven says, (Tr. 198)--is considered, and the lines of the two deeds drawn parallel thereto, as would be permissible where the deeds were drawn with reference to a line so established, a conflict results.

The record is silent of any inference that Douglass, in deeding his land, took into consideration any such bearing away from the cardinal points. The record is silent as to any surveys intermediate of the original survey, and the time when

Douglass deeded; or any survey between that time and the time the respective parties to this action acquired their land. A complete absence of any public record or private survey showing any variation of the section line from its course between two cardinal points, at a time when deeds are made, would seem to amount to substantially complete proof that the makers of the deeds in these abstracts actually meant south when they said that.

Since it is the defendants who seek to claim land that plaintiff occupies, it would seem to be essential that she establish that her deed calls for some of that land. A survey, with reference to which none of the deeds

could have been made, can hardly amount to such proof. For while this Court has held in *H.O.L.C. v. Dudley*, (105 Utah 208, 141 P. 2nd 160), that a survey monument, relocated by proper authority, is presumed to be placed where the surveyor originally located it, that presumption prevails only until properly challenged. In that case, the Court said:

"No field notes from the surveyor or general's office on actual surveys between monuments were offered to show where the boundaries were actually located, if in a different location. The location of a monument controls, and if it is obliterated, the court is concerned in ascertaining where it was originally located, if in a different location."

Appellants' proof here itself disclosed that one or the other of the re-located monuments must have differed from

the original survey monuments, since otherwise, they would have been due north and south of each other, as disclosed from examination by her witness of the field notes of United States Survey. At the very best, she left uncertain the question of the true location of the United States Survey, upon which the deeds in both chains of title base their descriptions.

As her evidence contained proof contradicting her claim that she owned land other than that which she occupied, it fell short of establishing her right.

Utah cases contain other matter as to surveys, mixed authority upon this Point, and on Point No. 2, which we will briefly note here:

Street monuments, placed by public authority where original monuments were not found, held not to control over a fence line and improvements made with relation thereto long prior to such relocation.

Holmes v. Judge - 31 Utah 269,
87 P. 1009

Where surveyors testified that old monuments of the original survey of Lake View Addition had disappeared, that they located them "as best we could" from the old plat, that "you locate them from one direction and make a certain location, and you locate them from another direction and make another location and you have to reconcile them as best you can", they came close to stating the situation

here presented. Judgment of the court establishing lines on the basis of a new survey, rather than on old fence lines, was reversed.

Young vs. Hyland - 37 Utah 229,
106 P. 1124

We submit that defendants failed to establish any claim to lands occupied by plaintiff.

Point No. 2: "The Court properly held that fence line to be an established boundary."

So far as the fence line lies west of the lines called for by the deeds, as we have urged under the previous heading, plaintiff may not complain, having expressly disclaimed any other boundary line, as the court found. Nor have the defendants any cause to complain of that finding.

Were it in dispute, were plaintiff

claiming, as defendants claim, land on the other side, the evidence in the case presents almost every element of fact that moves courts to refuse to permit parties to claim beyond such a fence. We have shown by the testimony:

The original monuments have been completely obliterated and the surveyor upon whose evidence the case depends admitted the probability of error in relocating them.

There have been some 55 years of acquiescence in a line marked by many visible monuments, a fence over all of it for many years, (Bates didn't bother with much of one at the slough), such fence lying in front of a line of trees, just east of, in order, an irrigation ditch, a

driveway and a house; the driveway running parallel to the fence to a barn shown as being there in Erickson's day, with a corral in front of it, and use and occupation up to that boundary line by all adjoining owners.

Acquiescence in the fence line shown by the replacement, in 1929 or 1930, upon the former line as established by the "committee of viewers."

The fact that all of the improvements now on the property, except some small construction by plaintiff, were built, obviously with reference to that line, as much as 55 years prior to the completion of the trial.

Such effect as may be given to the inspection of the property by the court.

The Craven testimony which disclosed that, in drafting his plat, this expert took into consideration factors which he considered as disclosing the intent of the makers of the deeds, and, had he known of the additional factor that the titles came out of a common owner, he would have reached a different result in platting its lines—certainly adequate evidence that the location of the line was, at best, so far as defendants' testimony went, an uncertain factor.

This Court, for about as many years as that boundary line had existed, has handed down decisions which establish that lines, used as boundaries between the lands of adjoining owners, under such circumstances of long acquiescence, improve-

ment with relation to them, use and occupation up to the line, become boundaries which may not be disturbed. Any cases which this court has decided against such lines as boundaries have been marked by want of some essential factor, or presence of some other factor negating the effect of the line as a boundary. Our position is squarely based on such cases as those cited under Point No. 1, and

Brown vs. Mulliner - 232 P. 2nd 831,
No Utah Citation
Dragos vs. Russell - 237 P. 2nd 831,
No Utah Citation

Point No. 3: "The Court properly awarded plaintiff a money judgment against defendants."

Our statement of facts disclosed citations of evidence showing, and a finding by the court that the defendants so excavated the property along the boundary

as to loosen the posts leaving them completely detached from the soil or exposed; that such excavations ran back 410 feet from the street; that the excavations removed lateral support from plaintiff's land, the land along the excavation crumbling and falling into the excavation; the adjacent bank of plaintiff's irrigation ditch had broken down in such a manner as to reduce its carrying capacity--to a third of the former capacity, the testimony shows (Tr. 43); a series of acts in which each of the three defendants participated at one time or another and which the court found to have been done with malice and for the purpose of injuring plaintiff.

Factually, such finding was backed up by the court's view of the property,

when he must have observed the facilities Mrs. Dinsdale had for seeing work being done along the boundary line from her house; the testimony that on May 22nd, 1949, (Tr. 39 to 41) Darrell Dinsdale, a son working on his mother's place (Tr. 286) and, if employed by anyone, then employed by her, bored holes in several trees and put salt in them to kill them; that on June 2nd, (Tr. 41) Mrs. Dinsdale and Darrell worked together putting the fence in place in its new location, Darrell shoving it back, and Mrs. Dinsdale shovelling dirt into the postholes; that between June 2nd and 22nd, (Tr. 42) "they" kept moving the fence, cutting away the dirt, throwing it back on their property, had a bulldozer there and went as close to the trees as "she"

could, while "he"—whether Chester or Darrell not specified,—was digging with a shovel, cutting the tree roots, and slicing into the sides of the trees with his shovel.

This was not an attempt to move the fence line to the location the defendants claimed for it in their pleadings. It was a malicious attempt to annoy plaintiff and injure her property. There can be no doubt that all three defendants knew what went on, and joined in more than one of the actions. Such a course of conduct surely renders all of them liable for the consequences.

As to the Amount: No witness who testified as to the damage done, and the experts saw it personally, one of them

knowing the property prior to the commission of the acts complained of, fixed the damage at less than \$425.00, and there was no evidence offered to dispute the figures used by them in reaching that result.

Point No. 4: "No prejudicial error arose from the action of Judge Hendricks with respect to the affidavit of prejudice."

Trial of this action commenced, as we have seen, May 31st, 1950. Had Mrs. Dinsdale been present when the inspection of the premises, with examination of the Craven map, was had, the action would have ended that day since she, as well as the other defendants would have been bound by the stipulation then made. She thereafter refused to be so bound, and

the trial had to proceed. The matters had been argued, and the court evidently indicated some opinion upon the basis of the view, the plat, map or survey and whatever had been stipulated, because he directed findings to be made.

That seemed to be the end of the trial. But Mrs. Dinsdale refused to be bound by the stipulation of her counsel, he withdrew, new counsel was employed, a new setting obtained so that the cause might be finished in some manner. At that stage, when the court was prepared to go forward with whatever might be requisite to complete the trial, the affidavit of prejudice was interposed.

It contained no ground of disqualification established by constitution or

statute. The affidavit stated first that some 18 years before, while County Attorney, Judge Hendricks had "handled the prosecution against the defendant, Chester Dinsdale, on a battery charge, which controversy and said criminal charge arose out of a dispute over the same property herein questioned."

Constitutional grounds for disqualification of a Utah judge, as given in Article VIII, Section 13, prohibit a judge from sitting in a cause in which he may have been of counsel. Section 20-6-1, Utah Code Ann., 1943, provides that no judge may sit in a cause when he has been attorney or counsel for either party in the action or proceeding."

Both constitution and statute permit such disqualification to be waived by the parties, and going to trial is an implied consent.

5 A.L.R. 1604, (Note c.)

Nothing in this affidavit raised ground for such constitutional disqualification. Representation of either party to a cause, while a practitioner, does not disqualify a judge unless the cause before him is that in which he had so acted. He is not disqualified by having represented third parties in actions even though their claims were identical with those arising out of the pending suit; nor because the facts in a former case were similar, and the law involved the same as in that before him. "The matter in controversy must

be essentially the same as that in connection with which he was employed."

(30 A. Jur. 789) A county attorney does not represent a litigant, but the public, and the criminal trial of a charge of battery is not the same as a private controversy as to who owns certain land, even though the battery arose out of a quarrel over that land.

The affidavit further said: "That during the pendency of this action and prior to the time when the action had been tried on its merits, the judge had viewed the premises and stated in word and effect that the boundary line as claimed by the defendants will be the boundary line established."

Again the affidavit said too little.

Language such as that quoted requires giving its context before its weight towards showing bias or prejudice can be determined. A judge is not disqualified to sit in the trial of a criminal case because he may have expressed an opinion as to the guilt or innocence of an accused, nor to try an election contest because, on election day, he advised a challenged voter that he was entitled to vote. (30 Am. Jur. 786) A statement such as that ascribed to Judge Handricks, made privately, not as a part of his official duties, might not imply bias, it might be mere offhand opinion from what he saw on the visit.

The context which appellants omit, perhaps advisedly, is supplied elsewhere

by the record. This cause proceeded in May to the point where the judge directed findings to be made. He must have expressed his opinion as to the judgment to be entered. We submit that to so indicate at that stage and upon the record then made, did not establish with legal sufficiency his inability, by reason of bias or prejudice, to complete the case when the stipulation on which he acted was set aside, and the matter was to be determined upon additional evidence. Judges may and frequently do retry causes after a reversal of a former judgment, they frequently indicate in hearing preliminary matters what their opinion is on a pleaded state of facts; they hear motions for new trials, in causes they tried, motions to vacate

judgment which they have entered, and their former decisions do not constitute grounds for alleging bias or prejudice against them. (30 Am. Jur. 789-790).

The above approach illustrates our suggestions as to the logical decision of this matter. It is the law that, as to affidavits of prejudice:

"It is the duty of the party to make his objections before the trial is commenced if he is aware of the facts at that time, otherwise he will be deemed to have waived it, where it may be waived." (30 Am. Jur. 792).

The objections from the prosecution of the battery case was known long prior to May 31st. If the other objection did not arise out of the former proceedings at this trial, the affidavit is silent as to any reason, any excuse, why it was not presented

more seasonably. Had such an affidavit been presented at the commencement of this trial, another judge, upon it being referred to him, should have pronounced it legally insufficient because one ground alleged was not matter for disqualification, and the other ground was not sufficiently alleged so as to show the judge to have been biased or prejudiced.

Failure timely to present grounds for disqualification under the Federal Statute upon which, our Rules note, this particular rule is based, waives that right.

Eisler vs. U.S.	170 F.2nd, 273
Reflor vs. Lansing	
Drop Forge Co.	124 F.2nd, 440; cert den, 62 Sp. Ct, 794.

Tenn. Pub. Co. vs. Carpenter	100 F.2nd, 728; Cert., den., 59 Sp. Ct., 775
Scott vs. Beams	122 F.2nd, 77; cert. den., 62 Sp. Ct., 794- 5-9

Scott v. Beams is quite close to this case on the facts. Trial to determine heirship of one Jackson Barnett, wealthy Creek Indian, had been proceeding, the applicants for change of judge had put in evidence some 60 days prior, a question arose as to validity of a contract, between certain groups of contestants for a common front in the litigation, which applicants claimed to be contemptuous and against public policy; the affidavit said that in a private conversation between the judge and an assistant district attorney representing the United States, the

latter had told the judge that the attorney general thought the contract valid, and the judge had replied he did not think it contemptuous and probably not against public policy; other matter in the affidavit is indicated below. The Tenth Circuit Court said:

"The statement, that the Assistant United States District Attorney conferred with the judge in the absence of other attorneys in the case was not a fact showing bias or prejudice. And the statement that the contract was probably not against public policy was manifestly a mere extemporaneous or offhand expression of opinion without any purpose or intent to prejudice any issue in the case and was not a fact showing bias or prejudice. Otherwise, the affidavit abounded with general allegations of hostility of the court, abuse of witnesses and threats to have them incarcerated, and encouragement of their attorneys for litigants in their abuse of such witnesses; but these were conclusions and not statements of fact. For instance,

one litigant might regard a statement or several statements of the presiding judge as constituting hostility, abuse of witnesses and threats of incarceration, while another litigant might regard such a statement or statements otherwise. Except the statement of the court in respect to the contract not being contemptuous and as to it probably not being against public policy, the affidavit did not set out any statement of the court in form or substance. It requires no elucidation to make plain that the affidavit fell far short of stating facts and prejudice of the court and therefore it failed to comply with the requirements of the statute."

After noting that the United States statute requires such an affidavit to be filed at least ten days prior to the beginning of the term of court, or that good cause be shown for failure, the Court further said:

"If in the nature of things

the affidavit cannot be filed at least ten days before the beginning of the term of court it must be filed with reasonable promptitude after the disqualifying facts are known and it must show a proper excuse for delay. But the initial affidavit of disqualification was not filed until sixty days thereafter, that is to say about two months after the bias and prejudice of the court became apparent. That was too late."

Finally, the Court said:

"Still, we are not to be understood as approving all of the statements, comments and criticisms coming from the Court, or the excess of interference with the attorneys in their examination of the witnesses. But there is no showing whatever that the complaining parties failed to introduce all of the evidence which was available to them. And we think the court reached the right conclusion in the end. Another long and expensive trial, without the incidents of which complaint is made, would in all probability conclude with like findings of

fact and judgment. The ends of justice would therefore not be furthered with reasonable dispatch by ordering a retrial."

From another viewpoint: Assume no trial had been commenced, assume the affidavit to have been legally sufficient, yet error is not prejudicial unless it affects the decision in the cause, unless prejudice results,

Upon the main issue, we think our point that no evidence here establishes any rights on the part of Mrs. Dinsdale to any land west of the boundary fence should be sustained. Her own proof boomeranged into proof against her.

On the other issue of damages: Defendants did not deny that the acts alleged were done; Mrs. Dinsdale did not

deny participation in the things which her menfolk did under her eyes, menfolk living on her land, and subject to her direction as its owner. The sole question the court had to determine was what damage had been done, and an allowance of 60% of the lowest estimate made by a witness can scarcely be called prejudicial.

A final word: We would admit that the Statement of Facts we herein make, and our argument on this point are in excess of what might be required of us, were it not for one thing. It seems obvious that appellants have no hope of prevailing upon any other ground than that arising from the affidavit of prejudice. Our client, should we not prevail upon this, may possibly have to shoulder the burden

of a huge transcript,--a transcript of which the appellants, after bringing it here, have made no use save to proffer it to this court as a happy hunting ground in which the court, if so disposed, may beat up error which appellants have shunned the task of point out.

Point No. 5: "Appellants' Points Nos. II, III and VI are waived by want of proper argument and without merit."

As to appellants' point No. II, the only thing appearing by way of argument made is that invitation, to which we above referred, for this court to hunt out in the record something to support appellants' point. In their Point No. VI, the Court again is invited to search the transcript for the purpose of finding some ruling on

evidence by the lower court which was erroneous. Upon their Point No. III, Appellants go further only to the extent of citing to this court the pages where their motion for dismissal may be found.

The Rules (75 (p) 2), do not require in the Statement of Points detailed statements of the ruling of which appellants complain. But nothing in the Rules relaxes the necessary requirement that the writer of a brief be specific as to the errors in the record which he argues under that point.

Respondent, not having knowledge of what conduct of the trial court is claimed to be erroneous, nor as to what rulings in the admission of testimony

and evidence are complained of, cannot argue further.

As to Point No. III, we have directed this Court's attention to the situation as to the evidence when plaintiff rested and this motion was made, in the first paragraph under the sub-head, "Conflict of Titles" in our Statement of Facts.

Plaintiff came into court to sue trespassers. Her right to do so necessarily required proof of either possession of title. Possession with claim of title made her case in that respect.

63 C.J. 902 - 909 - 979 - 1009
Kunkel vs. Utah Lumber
Company 29 Utah 13
81 P. 897

Evidence introduced prior to plain-

tiff resting, as there detailed, adequately established such a possession, and that it was under claim of title.

Judgment in favor of plaintiff should be sustained.

Respectfully submitted

STUART P. DOBBS
812 Eccles Building
Ogden, Utah
Attorney for Respondent